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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The past year has been another busy one for the Company, with four acquisitions, ten disposals and continued
successful asset management. The combined effect was an increase in the size of our property portfolio from
£295.1m to £344.8m. The total return for shareholders was 37.0%, which compares with the MSCIVAREF UK
Quarterly Property Fund Index total return of 23.7%.

While risks around COWVID-19 and pandemics cannot be fully discounted, the likelihood of future UK government
restrictions due to COVID-19 appears remote. Owners of industrial property can count themselves relatively fortunate
over the past two years. The vast majority of our tenants were able to continue operations throughout the various
lockdowns, and we experienced a relatively minor level of tenant failure. Rent collection has been challenging
nevertheless with many tenants paying late, but our management team have collected in excess of 98% of the rent
demanded since March 2020. The last two quarters has seen the rate of rent collection return to pre-pandemic levels.
We will continue to negotiate and work with tenants to recover as much of any unpaid rent as possible.

Focus for many has shifted to inflation, interest rate rises and the possibility of a recession. Property rental
businesses are not immune to the impacts of rising prices. We are mindful that many of our tenants will be
experiencing increases in their costs of production and operation, increasas in taxes, and in many casas increases in
rent. We have worked hard over the past few years to improve the quality of our estates, acquire properties with high
occupational demand and limited competition, and ensure that deals are done at rents which reflect these factors, We
have been able to let vacant units quickly, often at improved rents. We will continue to communicate regularly with our
tenants and our agents so that we are aware in advance of tenants who are struggling, and we will devise payment
plans or rent deferrals where we consider these to be in the best interests of shareholders.

Industrial property continues to generate strong demand from cccupiers and investors. There is currently a structural
imbalance between demand and supply for industrial property, which has driven marked rental growth over the past
few years. The evidence from recent lettings and projections for available space, suggest that this trend is continuing,
however we remain cautious given cost pressures faced by our tenants and the uncertainty surrounding the current
economic environment. Over the year to 30 June 2022, the MSCI UK property index registered an increase in the
capital valus of industrial properties of 33.7%. This compares with capital value increases of 14.7% for retail, 2.7% for
offices and 5.9% for hotels,

In November 2021, the Board raised the dividend to 6.50p per share per annum from 6.25p. In addition to usual
guarterly dividends, the Company also paid special dividends of 0.50p per share in July 2021 and 0.50p in October
2021, The July 2021 special dividend was declared in June 2021 and therefore was recognised in the 2021 financial
statements. The special dividends were paid in recognition of better rent collection over the prior 18 months than had
been anticipated at the start of the pandemic. The Board aims to increase the dividend rate sustainably over time,

Despite the strong market we have seen to date, the effect of higher rates will be felt by all asset markets. The
valuation of listed property REITs suggests that investors currently anticipate falls of at least 10% in valuation, even
for fully let buildings in growth categories. Recession will have effects we cannot yet anticipate. For these reasons,
the Board and the Manager have been keen to future-proof the Company and be in a position to take advantage of
new opportunities in a more difficult market. The Manager has made net disposals with this in mind. Furthermore,
since the year end the Company has returned £18.86m to shareholders by way of a share buy back, providing
investors with ligquidity and a chance to crystalise a portion of their gains.

Following the disposals and acquisitions made over the past year, along with increases in valuation, the Company’s
loan-to-value at 30 June 2022 was 26.7% (2021: 31.2%). This figure includes nine properties where contracts had
been exchanged before the year end, but completion took place after the year end, but the disposal had been
accounted for at 30 June 2022, Following the completion of these disposals and one further disposal where contracts
had been conditionally exchanged prior to the year end, the Company's loan-to-value fell to 22.2%. As at 30 June
2022 the Company had fully drawn its committed debt facilities, however following completion of these ten disposals,
the Company had £31.7m of available committed debt. This will allow us to take advantage of investment
opportunities as they are identified by our fund manager. It remains our intention that the Company's loan-to-value
ratio should be between 25% and 35%,

| would like to thank all of our investors for the loyal backing that they continue to provide.



CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

| would also like to thank Toby Dean and the entire team at Clipstone Investment Management. They have worked
very hard for shareholders in what has been yet another especially busy and successful year. Shareholders have
achieved significant outperformance despite numerous external challenges thanks to their efforts.

The Board is confident that we are well positioned to capitalise on opportunities in the market and weather any
storms. We are well aware of the risks of persistently high inflation and the ongoing monetary response, which is
proving challenging to all asset markets. The Company has taken decisive action to hedge against rising interest rate
costs and wider cost inflation, and position itself to be able to act quickly should the market for industrial properties
deteriorate.

| am pleased to report the results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,
Results to 30 June 2022

The Group's properties were independantly valuad at 30 June 2022 at £344 800,000 (30 June 2021: £295,100,000),
an increase of 9.2% from the portfolio valuation on 31 December 2021 on a like-for-like basis. The increase is due to
active asset management of the portfolic and continued strong performance of industrial property in the South-East.

The Group's net asset value (NAV) per share at 30 June 2022 was £2.2603 (30 June 2021: £1.6248). Mo adjustment
has been made for any potential performance fee due to the property manager. If the investment properties were
sold at their values at 30 June 2022, there would be a performance fee payable of £19,875,456 (30 June 2021:
£4.408,214). The NAV net of the potential performance fee would have been £2.1091 per share at 30 June 2022 (30
June 2021: £1.5904). The total return since listing, representing both the NAV increase and dividends paid to 30
June 2022, net of the potential performance fee, is 153.4% (30 June 2021: 94.1%).

Events to 30 June 2022
| summarise below the material events that have taken place during the year ended 30 June 2022,
On 25 August 2021, the Company issued 3,509,706 ordinary shares at £1.5961 each.

On 26 August 2021, the proceeds from this issue of shares, were used to purchase a three-unit estate in Crawley for
£5.25m plus associated purchase costs, representing a net initial yield of 4.49%. This represented an opportunity for
the Company to acquire a good quality industrial estate well-located close to the M23, M25, and Gatwick airport. It
consists of three units, all of which are occupied. The property offers both short term asset management
opportunities, along with the potential for long-term redevelopment options.

During the year the Company utilised the remaining £12.25m of its long-term fixed-rate £30m debt facility with LGIM.
The proceeds were used to finance acquisitions in March 2022.

On 3 March 2022, the Company completed on a deal to purchase an investment property in Reading for £15.73m
plus associated purchase costs, representing a net initial yield of 3.78%, while simultaneously selling its estate in
Slough for £13.23m. The property in Reading is let to DPDGroup UK Limited until 2034 with no break options. The
property was constructed in 2014 and is a single let warehouse totalling 37,872 square feet. The property is located
within 2 miles of the M4 making it ideal for servicing Greater London and the South East, and has an EPC rating of
"B", in line with our ESG targets and upcoming changes to minimum energy efficiency standards (MEES) legislation.

This estate in Slough was acquired by the Company for £7.68m in January 2019. The gain recognised on disposal
after costs since acquisition was £5.46m. The profit recognised during the current financial year was £4.99m. The
estate had units with EPC ratings ranging from "B" to "E", with 8 of the 15 units rated "D" or "E". This sale is in line
with our strategic objectives of divesting from assets with lower environmental performance credentials.

On 28 March 2022, the Company acquired an investment property in Sevencaks for £8.677m plus associated
purchase costs, with a net initial yield of 4.05% and reversionary yield of 4.40%. The property is a brand new
development completed immediately prior to acquisition. It is made up of seven units totalling 31,180 square feet.
Three units were vacant upon acquisition, however all three have subsequently been let. It is located within 8 miles of
the M25 and close to the M20. All units have "A" rated EPCs.
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Events to 30 June 2021 (Continued)

On 13 May 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of an investment property in Banbury for £5.52m plus
associated purchase costs, reflecting a net initial yield of 4.40%, however the most recent letting suggests the
property is reversionary. The building comprises a terrace of six trade units, all of which are let. Banbury is a well
established trade and logistics location adjacent to junction 11 of the M40 between London and Birmingham.

On 24 June 2022, the Company exchanged contracts to sell ten investment properties for £61.7m. The sale of nine of
these properties was either unconditional, or conditional on matters that were within the control of the Company and
virtually certain to be satisfied. The disposal of these nine properties is therefore recognised in the current year's
financial statements. The sale of the tenth property was conditional on approval from the superior landlord. Given this
uncertainty this property was recognised as still held as an investment property at the year end. The disposal of the
nine properties resulted in a profit for the year of £23.933m, and a profit since acquisition of £26.634m.

Interim dividends totalling 6.9375 pence per share were declared during the year comprising dividends of 1.5625
pence per share paid on 1 September 2021, 0.5000 pence per share on 27 October 2021, 1.6250 pence per share on
24 November 2021, 1.6250 pence per share on 23 February 2022, and 1.6250 pence per share on 26 May 2022,

Management Fees

The Board has agreed with the Property Manager that the 1.25% annual management fee will be subject to a sliding
scale, so that the fee is charged at a rate of 1.25% of NAY per annum up to NAY of £225m and 1.00% for amounts
over £225m. This will lead to further economies of scale and therefore enhanced returns for investors as the fund
grows.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Company operates an Environmental, Secial and Governance (ESG) policy that includes monitoring the
operations of the Company's tenants to ensure that the use of our buildings is socially and environmentally
responsible. It also conducts a guarterly analysis of the environmental impact of the Company's properties, with a
view to reducing the carbon footprint impact of the Company’'s operations over time. The Company is continuingly
reviewing its ESG goals, and a report on the Company's progress against its targets over the past 12 months is on
page 10.

Post Balance Sheet Events
On 26 July 2022, the Company completed on the sale of 9 investment properties for £57.685m. This disposal had
been recognised during the year as contracts had been exchanged on 24 June 2022, at which point the risks and

rewards of ownership had substantively passed to the purchaser.

On 1 August 2022, the Company completed the buy back of 9,228 703 ordinary shares at £2.0432 per share. The
total consideration was £18,856,086.

On 17 August 2022, the Company completed on the sale of its estate at Fareham for £4.0m.
An interim dividend of 1.6250 pence per share was declared on 11 August 2022 and paid on 25 August 2022,

On 1 September 2022, the Company exchanged contacts to purchase an investment property in Aldershot for £13.6m
plus purchase costs, equating to a net initial yield of 4.9%. The purchase completed on 8 September 2022.

Karl Sternbearg z
Chairman

3 October 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their Strategic Report on the Company for the year to 30 June 2022.

The Company is a closed-ended investment company, incorporated on 19 May 2014 in England and Wales and
registered as an investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006,

The Company’s issued share capital is listed on the Official List of The International Stock Exchange. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together "the Company") entered the REIT regime with effect from 17 December 2014,

Investment Objective

The Company's Investment Objective is to generate secure income and capital returns for Shareholders by investing
in a balanced portfolic of good quality industrial property across the South and South East of the UK.

The full Investment Policy is set out in the Listing Document which can be obtained from The International Stock
Exchange (http:/fwww tiseCompany.com/).

The Company will target a maximum level of bank borrowings of 55% of the value of the investment portfolio, but will
lock to maintain a loan to value range of 25% = 35%.

Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM) and Property Manager

The AIFM for the year continued to be Clipstone Capital Limited. Toby Dean is a director of Clipstone Capital Limited
and a director of the Company. The annual fee payable to the AIFM is £20,000.

The Company has appointed Clipstone Investment Management Limited ("Clipstone IM") as property manager
pursuant to a property management agreement dated 15 December 2014. Under the Property Management
Agreement, Clipstone IM has agreed to provide property management services and advice to the Company and the
AIFM, such as identifying, evaluating and negotiating investment opportunities in property for the Company, subject
to the overall control and supervision of the Directors. The agreement may be terminated on one year's notice by
either party after four years. The annual management fee is 1.25% of the net asset value of the Company up to a
value of £225m and 1% of the net asset value in excess of £225m, measured and paid guarterly in arrears. Toby
Dean is a director and shareholder of Clipstone IM and a director and shareholder of the Company. Richard
Demarchi is a director of Clipstone IM and a director and shareholder of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Company intends to pay interim dividends on a quarterly basis in cash. The Company paid a dividend on 25
August 2022 at an annualised rate of 6.50p. The Board is targeting sustainable increases in the dividend rate over
time.

Key Performance Indicators

The Directors consider that the Company's net asset value is a more appropriate indicator of the performance of a
property investment Company than earnings per share. The calculation of the net asset value is given in Note 20 on
page 42.

The Company's net asset value (NAV) less potential performance fee per share at 30 June 2022 was £2,1091 (2021:
£1.5904), which represents an increase of 115.2% (2021: 62.3%) over the £0.98 on admission on 17 December
2014. The total return, being NAY increase and dividends paid less potential performance fee to 30 June 2022 was
153.4% (2021: 94.1%).

The Company's properties were independently valued at 30 June 2022 at £344 800m (2021: £295.100m), an uplift of
39.5% (2021: 17.9%) over their aggregate acquisition price, excluding acquisition costs.
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Qutlook

The property market is sensitive to rising interest rates and wider political and economic instability. While the
industrial property market has fared relatively well compared with other sectors, the outlook remains uncertain. All
restrictions on activity relating to COVID-19 have now been lifted, however we ramain mindful that the long-term
impact on the property market is still present. With the risk of the economy entering into a recession and rising
interest rates this may cause valuation reductions, and reduce the profitability of the Company as we have some
floating rate debt. Interest rates have already increased by 200 basis points since the beginning of 2022 and further
rate rises over the coming months are anticipated. We have worked over the previous year to ensure that the
Company is on a sound footing to deal with interest rate rises and economic turbulence but are aware that these
factors will have an impact on our returns in the short term.

We remain confident in the quality of our portfolio and the underlying demand and supply dynamics in the
occupational market for South East industrials. To date we have not experienced any material change in the
occupational market. The Company's portfolio still has very low levels of vacancy, and where new leases are being
granted, or rent reviews undertaken, we are still seeing good uplifts over previous rental levels. We are therefore
hopeful that any reduction in valuation will be relatively modest, subject to the path of the wider economy and
investment market over the coming months. A deep recession would clearly affect the occupational market, securing
new tenants for vacant units, the credit quality of existing tenants and as such the security of rent collection. We will
continue to manage the portfolic on a tenant-by-tenant basis and take an active stance in dealing with any tenants
experiencing difficulty. We will look to employ positive asset management initiatives to help tenants while preserving
the value of our properties and ensuring as much rent is collected as is possible.

The Company has worked over the past few years to position its portfolio to withstand economic shocks by
increasing diversity, keeping loan-to-value low, and improving liquidity. We have also ensured that the portfolio is
invested in good quality buildings, in good locations and with strong underlying fundamentals around the supply of
and demand for space in specific geographical locations. This is highlighted by the four new asset purchases this
year in Crawley, Sevenoaks, Reading and Banbury along with the sale of ten assets which has enhanced the guality
of the overall portfalio.

We will continue to manage the portfolio on a tenant-by-tenant basis and take an active stance in dealing with any
tenants experiencing difficulty. We will look to employ positive asset management initiatives to help tenants while
preserving the value of our properties and ensuring as much rent is collected as is possible.

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Risks Relating to the REIT status of the Company

The basis of taxation of any Shareholder's holding in the Company will differ or change fundamentally if the Company
fails or ceases to maintain its REIT status as the Company was set up to benefit from this structure. The
requirements for maintaining REIT status are complex. There is a risk that the REIT Regime may cease to apply in
some circumstances. The Company will continue to manage its operations with a view to compliance with the REIT
conditions with close attention from the Board.

Risks Relating to Gearing

Shareholders should be aware that, whilst the use of borrowings should enhance the net asset value of the Company
where the value of the Company's underlying assets is rising, it will have the opposite effect where the underlying
asset value is falling. This may further increase the volatility of the net asset value of the Company. In addition, in the
event that the rental income of the Company's portfolio falls for whatever reason, the use of borrowings will increase
the impact of such a fall on the net revenue of the Company and accordingly will have an adverse effect on the
Company's ability to pay dividends to Shareholders.
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Risks Relating to Gearing (continued)

The use of borrowings by the Company also exposes it to capital risks and interest costs. The use of leverage
increases the exposure of investments to adverse economic factors such as rising interest rates, severe economic
downturns or deteriorations in the condition of an investment or its market. In particular, the Company may be
required to realise investments to fund the repayment of the Company's borrowings at a time when the value of such
investments is depressed because of adverse market conditions. The Company carefully selects properties for
acquisition to maintain value.

While the Company does not currently use swaps or caps to hedge against interest rate risk, the Company's LGIM
loan facility acts as a hedge against rising interest rates, The facility has a fixed interest rate of 2.20% over a seven-
year term. The facility with Barclays expires within the coming year and heads of terms have been agreed for a new
variable rate facility with Barclays. The Board will continue to monitor the market and sentiment over future interest
rates and will consider entering into a new interest rate cap should it be considered to be in the best interest of
shareholders.

Future compliance with the Company's banking covenants depends on a number of factors including general
financial conditions, which are very difficult to predict. If real estate assets owned by the Company (or its
subsidiaries) decrease in value such covenants could be inadvertently breached, and the impact of such an event
could include: an increase in borrowing costs; a call for additional capital from the lender; or payment of a fee to the
lender; or in such cases where other remedies were not available, it could require a sale of an asset, or a forfeit of
any asset to a lender, this could result in a total or partial loss of equity value for each specific asset, or indeed the
Company as a whole. The Board will closely monitor compliance with the banking covenants and maintain the overall
gearing against the value and quality of the property portfolio. All covenants currently have ample headroom,

The Company's existing Barclays facility runs until April 2023 and its LGIM facility runs until July 2028. The LGIM
facility is fully drawn, as was our revolving credit facility with Barclays on 30 June 2022. Since then, the Company has
repaid £31.7m of its revolving credit facility following property disposals. This is immediately available to be drawn
down if required. We will continue to monitor the credit market and liaise with our lenders to ensure that we can
secure further finance as and when the Board considers it appropriate well in advance of the current facilities
maturity.

\We have agreed heads of terms to refinance our facility with Barclays and are working towards completion as soon
as possible. This will extend the facility by 30 months. We are in regular contact with the Company's lenders and
discuss their attitude towards risk and our portfolio. We are confident that by maintaining a diverse portfolio of good
quality industrial properties in good locations, and keeping loan to value within our target range, the Company will
represent an attractive prospect to lenders and be considered relatively low risk. We will also aim to use an
approaching expiry of our loan facilities as an opportunity to negotiate the best possible terms on the market with a
range of lenders.

Conditions affecting the UK property market

The Company's performance will be affected by, amongst other things, general conditions affecting the UK property
market, as a whole or specific to the Company's investments, including decrease in capital values and weakening of
rental yields. The value of industrial real estate in the UK may be negatively impacted as a result of economic
recession, reductions in available credit, or changes in market confidence. The Company's ability to dispose of its
properties, and the price realised in any such disposals, will also depend on the general conditions affecting the
investment market at the time of the disposal. The Company's business and results of operations may be materially
adversely affected by a number of factors outside of its control, including but not limited to (i) a general property
market contraction, (i) a decline in property rental values, and (iii) changes in laws and governmental regulations in
relation to property, including those relating to permitted and planning usage, taxes and government charges, health
and safety and environmental compliance.

If conditions affecting the investment market negatively impact the price at which the Company is able to dispose of
its assets, or if the Company suffers a material decrease in property rental income, or if the Company suffers a
material increase in its operating costs, this may have a material adverse effect on the Company's business and
results of operations. The Company mitigates this risk by careful selection of properties for acquisition within its
target sector having particular regard to location and the covenant strength of the tenants.
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Risks arising from COVID-19

The implications of COVID-19 for the Company have been discussed elsewhere in this report. The principal risks to
the Company are around tenant failure and the recoverability of tenant arrears. If there are further lockdowns or
tighter restrictions on people and businesses imposed by the government there is a risk that the Company will suffer
a material decrease in property rental income and an increase in vacancy rate, and that these vacant units will ba
maore difficult to re-let. This may have a significant adverse effect on the Company's business and results of
operations.

Operational performance of tenants and tenant default

Both the rental income and the market value of the properties acquired by the Company will be affected by the
operational performance of the related business being carried on in the property and the general financial
performance of the operator. The operational performance of a tenant will be affected by local conditions such as
household incomes. Both rental income and market values may also be affected by other factors specific to the UK
industrial property market, such as competition from other property funds. In the event of default by a tenant if it is in
financial difficulty or otherwise unable to meet its obligations under the lease, the Company will suffer a rental
shortfall and incur additional expenses until the property is re-let. These expenses could include legal and surveyor's
costs in re-letting, maintenance costs, insurances, rates and marketing costs and may have a matenal adverse
impact on the financial condition and performance of the Company and/or the level of dividend cover. The Company
receives regular reports on concentrations of risk and any tenants in arrears. The Property Manager monitors such
reports in order to anticipate and minimise the impact of defaults by occupational tenants.

Subjective nature of valuations

The value of property and property related assets is inherently subjective due to the individual nature of each
property. In determining the value of properties and property-related assets, valuers are required to make
assumptions in respect of matters including, but not limited to, the existence of willing sellers in uncertain market
conditions, title, condition of structure and services, deleterious materials, plant and machinery and goodwill,
environmental matters, statutory requirements and planning, expected future rental revenues from the property and
other information. Such assumptions may prove to be inaccurate. Incorrect assumptions underlying the valuation
reports could negatively affect the value of any property assets the Company acquires and thereby have a material
adverse effect on the Company’'s financial condition. This is particularly so in periods of volatility or when there is
limited real estate transactional data against which property valuations can be benchmarked. This risk is minimised
by the appointment of external property valuers who are independent and professional.

Risks relating to the reliance on the Property Manager, the AIFM and their respective key
individuals

The ability of the Company to achieve its Investment Objective depends on the ability of the Property Manager and
the AIFM to identify, select and execute investments which offer the potential for satisfactory returns. The availability
of suitable investment opportunities will depend, in part, upon conditions in the UK industrial real estate market and
the level of competition for assets in that market. The Board and the Property Manager review strategic opportunities
on an ongoing basis.

Accordingly, the ability of the Company to achieve its Investment Objective depends heavily on the experience of the
Property Manager's and the AIFM's teams, and maore generally on the ability of the Property Manager and the AIFM
to attract and retain suitable staff. The underperformance or the departure of key skilled professionals from the
Property Manager andfor the AIFM could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business and financial
condition and on the results of its operations. The Board monitors the performance of the AIFM and the Property
Manager and has the ability to change or vary their appointment subject to relevant notice requirement.
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Risks relating to Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

The Company's stakeholders expect us to comply with responsible business practices and to ensure that we operate
an effective policy on the environmental and social impacts of our properties and the governance of the company.
Failing to adhere to best practices could lead to reputational damage, reduced returns for shareholders, negative
impact on asset liquidity, reduced access to debt and capital markets and a breakdown in relationships with
stakeholders.

The Board receives reports on ESG matters at every quarterly meeting from the Property Manager. The staff of the
Property Manager receive training in ESG matters, and maonitor changes in law, stakeholder sentiment and best
practice in relation to responsible business, seeking advice where needed from specialist consultants, We monitor
EPC ratings against a benchmark to ensure compliance with current and future Minimum Energy Efficiency
Standards (*“MEES") that could otherwise impact on the guality and desirability of our buildings leading to increased
void rates, lost income and reduced liquidity. Ve consider the risks posed by climate change for our properties and
plan accordingly, working with occupiers where possible to improve the energy efficiency of our assets. \We consider
the usage of our buildings and how this will impact on the local area and society, We receive quarterly reports from
the Property Manager against a list of “undesirable” uses. We also look to provide properties which are attractive to
business, and which will support local employment. We have 22 sustainability targets which are split across 4
strategy areas: being a responsible employer, environmental, social responsibility and good governance. We are
currently working towards these targets and will closely monitor to Company's performance to ensure they are met
thus reducing the risks relating to ESG. A report on performance against these targets is on page 10.

The Strategic Report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by:-

Toby Dean
Director

3 October 2022
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The Company and its Property Manager's ESG policies and targets were updated in Movember 2021 and are published on our
website.
http: e clipstone, co uk/environmental-social-and-governance-palicies/

The Company and its Property Manager has a range of Environmental, Social and Governance targets split across 4 strategy areas:
being a responsible employer, environmental, social responsibility and good governance. Perfarmance against these targets is set
out below.

Strategy Area Target Area Target Progress
We actively encourage employes input  The Property Manager (Clipstone Investmeant Management
info how Clipstone is run. We are Limited) is accredited as a Living Wage employer by the
) committed to being a Real Living Wage  Living Wage Foundation,
Being a . "
R nsibl Valuing employer. We ensure that all directly
Eﬂsﬁ'u sible Employeeas employed staff are paid above the We have audited the Company's suppliers to ensure that
mpleyer London Living Wage, as well as all our key suppliers and those working frequently on our
contractors who work at Clipstone’s estates were paying their employees the Real Living
aoffices or for Clipstone, Wage.
Relevant staff will receive ESG training.
Being a Training and More widely, we are Cl.?ll'l'lmltled to . Online ESG training has been rolled out and completed by
supporting staff's continued professional ) .
Responsible  Personal . L all relevant staff, and we will continue to encourage staff to
Ermpl Objective development, eithar through training sask opportunities for further trainin
mpleyer JRcives provided by Clipstone or enabling staff PP g
1o altend external courses and events,
1. In 2020021 we will start collecting the
data required to calculate the landlord-
controlled energy usage on all our
estates and provide a statistic for See our carbon report on page 16.
pertfolic energy intensity and GHG
emissions.
2. Using this baseline, we will aim to
reduce our ensrgy intensity and GHG
emissions. We will set an ambitious but
; See our carbon report on page 16.
achievable goal for a percentage
reduction over the next five years once
we know our baseline usage.
In June 2021 the Property Manager appointed Professor
John French to support us in developing a Net Zera
Environmental Landlord Carbon Strategy. Professor French holds a Chair in
Energy Usage Enterprise and Sustainability at the University of East

Anglia (UEA), is a Fellow of the Cambridge Institute of
Sustainability Leadership (CISL), and is a Professarial
Fellow of Walfson College, University of Cambridge. He is
an expert in sustainability with a particular emphasis on the
infrastructure and the built environment, new and retrofitted

3. We will formalise and begin working buildings and heritage projects.

towards a Net Zera Carbon strategy. His remit is to support and advise on our commitment to

move towards a net zero strategy and create a road map
that is both sensible and practical to implement at a
portfolic level. Evora have been appointed as our
consultant to assess and report on the properties to
determineg potential investment required to meet our net
zero goals,

We hope to be in a position to publish our Net Zero
strategy on our website bafore the end of 2022.

10



CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Strategy Area Target Area

Environmental

Environmental

Landlord
Energy Usage

Tenant Energy
Usage

Target

4. \We will aim to generate or purchase
sufficient renewable electricity to cover

aver 95% of landlord-controlled
electricity consumption,

5. We aim to increase the percentage of
our portfolio with smart meters. This will

help us closely monitor our energy

usage.

1. We aim to increase our level of

collection of energy usage data from our

tenants.

2. We will aim to increase the proportion
of our tenants using 100% renewable

electricity,

11

Progress

During the year to 30 June 2022, the percentage of
landlord-controlled electricity acquired from 100%
renewable supplies increased from 55% in the previous
year fo 93%. For the purposes of our reporting, we have
assessed this from the published fuel mixes of our
suppliers, We are aware that many "green tariffs” do not
provide genuine additionality - 1.e. purchasing ensrgy from
these companies doesn't result in increased generation
from renewals and therefore reduced generation from
fossil fuels. According to the UK Green Buildings Council
(March 2021) anly three suppliers had been recognised by
Ofgem to provide genuine addiionality and therefore meet
their criteria for a high-quality green tariff. None of our
supphes for the year were with these three companies.

Hopefully as the market improves, ideally with government
backing, the range of high-quality green tariffs will improve.
We will look to utilise the existing tariffs where they are
available and where it is economic to do so,

During the year the property manager installed smart meter
devices at three estates it manages for another mandate.
The manager will assess the performance of these meters
and make a decision on whather to roll them out across all
of the portfolios it manages, including that of the REIT. In
such a scenario we hope to have completed the roll out by
the end of the 2022/23 financial year,

See our Carbon repaort on page 16,

This is a challenging goal as we have no ability to force
tenants to make the decision to use 100% renewable
glectricity. What we have started daoing this year is
switching vacant units over to 100% renewable suppliers,
and when those units are let informing the incoming tenant
that the existing supplier provides 100% renewabla
eleciricity.

As part of our net zero strategy we will look at ways to
influence tenants into choosing 100% renewable electnicity,
To this end we are looking at developing a tenant
handbook which would provide tenants with information on
why they should choose green tarnffs, along with details on
our ESG policies, and ways in which we can help them
reduce energy usage.



CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Strategy Area Target Area

Environmental

CIML Carbon
Faotprint

Target

1. In 2020/21 we will collect data on
energy, water, waste at our head office,
and other metrics such as staff travel, to

enable us to calculate the carbaon
footprint at a corporate level.

2, We will offset our carbon footprint fo

hecome a carbon neutral business.,

3. We will ensure that 100% of o

purchased energy comes from 100%

renewable sources.

4. We will put in place incentive

schames for staff to promote greener

ur

fravel choices, and to achieve ESG

fargets for our business.
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Progress

During the year we published our offsetting strategy and
report, which can be found on our website. The report
includes confirmation of CIML's carbon foofprint for
2020021 of 19,845 Kg of CO.e.

Scope 1 13,835 Kg CO.e
Scope 2 2,739 Kg COue
Scope 3 3,271 Kg CO.2

13,812 Kg CO.e of the above were causad by a top up of
the air conditioning refrigerant, as a result of an issue with
the air conditioning. We understand that this should be a
one-off issue and therefore expect CIML emissions to
reduce significantly in 2021/22, We aim to report the
2021722 emissions data by the end of 2022,

We are committed to only using verifiable and genuinely
effective forms of offsetting, This will be targeted a long-
term carbon capture projects which remove CO; from the
atmosphere. To achieve this, we will align our strategy with
The EAUC Carbon Coalition
(eauc.ory.ukicarbon_coalition). The EAUC Carbon
Coalition is a consortium of UK and Ireland higher and
further education institutions that have joined together to
offset their emissions leveraging their combined buying
power and knowledge.

CIML offset its 2020/21 carbon foofprint in full, theraby
achieving carbon neutrality, We used carbon credits from
UK Woodland Carbon Code and Climeworks. Further
details on thess offsets can be found in the report on our
websits,

The electricity provider at our head office provides 100%
green electricity across all its tariffs. Our head office does
not have a gas supply.

Incentive schemes are in place for staff who receive a car
allowance, which will provide a financial incentive to
choose a fully electric or plug in hybrid vehicle when the
time comes to replacing their existing car, plus an element
of bonus related to achieving ESG targets,



CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Strategy Area

Environmental

Target Area

Building
Credentials

Target Progress

We will continue to assess sustainability
risks and oppaortunities of our portfalio
(including new investments) to ensure
assets are future proofed and
environmental risks are mitigated and
properly priced in by:

As at 30 June 2020 16.05% of the portfolio had an EPC
rating below D, of this 0.36% were rated F. There weare no
G ratings.

As at 30 June 2021 12.33% of the portfalio had an EPC

1. Reducing the percentage of our rating below D with all of these being E rated.

portfolic where EPC rating is below D,
with a view to increasing this target to at
least a C or B where economically viable
in advance of changes in Minimum
Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES)
legislation.

As at 30 June 2022 9.43% of the portfolio had an EPC
rafing balow a D with all of these being E rated.

Given the progress made over the past two years we will
amend this target to reducing the number of units with a D
rafing or worse to zero where opportunities arise.

We continue fo review EPCs on an ongoing basis seaking
improvements when opportunities arise,

Warking with Professar John French and third-party
consultants we will review the portfolio over time to assess
the assets and their risk rating.

As shown in the progress made on EPCs in the pravious
target, we have made good progress in reducing the risk

2. Risk rating all assets, including an  that assets become legally unlettable due to having poor

assessment of the risks of climate EPC ratings. Given the current legislation, EPCs provide a

change. good proxy rsk rating, however an incomplete and
relatively high-level one. As part of our work with EVORA,
they assessed that 76% of our portfolic would likely require
relatively low levels of capital expenditure to achieve net
zero (less than 5% of asset value), with the rest being
under 10% of asset value save for § of 272 units across
the paortfalio.

We are in the process of finalising the assets as risk based
on CREM methodology, We have found the standard
methodology o be too generalised and continue to look at
more relevant methods, Presently we are using EFCs as
the principal guide to identify assets at risk,

We continuously monitor EPC ratings and seak to improve
matters whenever a lease opportunity arises.

3. For estates at risk, create When considering refurbishments we undertake EPC
improvement plans and implement modelling where relevant to influence the scope of work.,
strategies to mitigate nisks. We have developed standard performance requirements

for LED lighting and controls etc to minimise anergy usa.
Thig has influenced improvements in the EPC ratings on
the properties,

We are currently in discussion with a firm of architects to
review our standard specification utilising lower carbon
alternative products and methodologies, in order to reduce
the embodied carbon impact of refurbishments.

13



CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Strategy Area

Environmental

Target Area

Building
Credentials

Target

4. For new investments, identify ESG
risks (and opportunities) and associated
future actions and costs potentially
required to mitigate risks,

5, Target at least BREEAM Very Good
an any large development projects and
greater consideration of biodiversity,
embodied carbon and potential positive
anvironmental impacts at developments.

G. Include relevant environmental and
social information into occupiar
marketing materials.

7. We aim to decrease the number of
properties using gas heated boilers in
favour of renewable sourced heating.

14

Progress

When seeking io acquire new assets wea undertake
environmeantal and building survays, Any risks identified
will assessed to determine if they can be managed, if so,
they will b costed and factored into the price. If we
consider the nsks too great, we would not proceed with the
potential acquisition.

During the year we acquired four properties, compriging 16
units. Of these, six have A rated EPCs, four have B
ratings, four have C ratings, and two have D ratings. By
floor area, the D rated units make up 7% of the total space
acquired, and the C ratings 19%. These purchases
therefore have improved the overall guality of the portfolio
and only represent a relatively small ESG risk, with
relatively light future capex required fo hit upcoming
changes in MEES.

Mo development projects undertaken in the year to 30
June 2022

The energy performance and utility information ara
incorparated into our marketing literature allowing potential
tenants to compare properties. Our literature also
identifies travel information such as distances to major
junctions atc.

By 2025, for tenants that do not have a published
sustainability strategy, we will provide tenants contact with
business support programmes such as CISL's
Sustainability Business Hub and Accelerator where they
can obtain free advice on energy and carbon transition and
how to adopt their own strategy. This would likely be part of
a tenant handbook.

As part of our refurbishment programme, we are removing
gas heaters from warehouses and will review the presence
of gas boilers for office heating and consider upgrading to
more energy efficient plant where non gas alternatives are
not viable, Cur work with Professor John French will
incorporate identification of suitable alternatives to gas or
mitigating strategies for unheated spaces.

While we have made progress in our research into
alternative heating systems during the past year, we have
discoverad that no obvious, simple, and cost-affactive
solution currently exists, Some tenants have elected to
remove gas and install electric air conditioning type
heating. We do not believe such systems are a wviable long-
term solution. While they are an improvement on gas
heating from an opearational emission point of view, they
reguire refrigerants which do not meet the criteria of net
zero, We will continue to support any tenants looking to
remove gas, and liaising with manufacturers and providers
of alternative systems to devise a suitable alternative lang-
term solution.



CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Strategy Area Target Area Target Progress

8. The above goals will be amended as We hope to be in a position to publish our net zero strategy

. Building ) ! by the end of 2022, Following this we will begin working
Environmenta| Credentials :?ﬁ:ﬁ?;:;l?ﬂ;he implementation towards that strategy including amending the above goals
¥ where necessary.
:’:euﬂ:‘l zq”'ﬁ:;"t:‘:mz?;[: ::? This code of conduct is available to view on our website, It
Mg dem Slpaﬁery and Supplier Code of has bean shared with and acknowledged by our key
Conduct. suppliers.
gu:d:ﬂrmc%':-:x cfj:glf: rc;:s:tr;rt'::;le Spot checks will be cared out on suppliers on a randem
P hasis,

Procurement Folicy.

Social Contractors  We will establish sustainability criteria This will be developed in consultation with Professor John

French and through the above-mentioned work with an
architectural firm. We are currently utilising EPC modelling
to target improvemeants through refurbishments.

Responsibility and Suppliers  for refurbishments and developments to
include within procurement tenders.

Despite not being required to by [aw, we

will produce a Modem Slavery Annual

Statement, setting out the steps we have Thess can be found on aur website
taken to ensure our business and our

portfolics are free from Modern Slavery.

This policy is available on our website and all staff have

We require all staff to abide by our been made aware of it and of their responsibility to abide
Diversity and Inclusion Palicy, by it. There have been no instances of breaches of the
policy.

We acknowledge that the Property
Manager is currently not a diverse
company and commit to improving this.
We will maintain statistics an our
diversity in terms of gender, ethnicity,
and socio-economic background. We
) . aim to improve these statistics and will
Diversily and build this info our hiring process.

Ma hires were made during the year.

Good Inclusion

Governance During the year CIML signed up as a sponsor for the

Worshipful Company of Chartered Surveyors' Pathways to
We will also aim to do our bit to improve  Property bursary schema. This involves both financial and
diversity within the property industry by practical support for a student to study for and pursue a
undertaking outreach and educational  career in Real Estate. To qualify for the scheme the

and work expenence programs with student must be from a disadvantaged background and
local underrepresented groups of young  meet several socio-economic criteria. We are looking
peopla. forward to mentoring and supporting our student over the

next three academic years and welcoming them to
Clipstone for work expernence,

Reporting and  We will aim by 2025 to report in line with  This is engoing. We need to collect more data to be able to
Benchmarking EFRA in our REIT annual report. meet this target.

In addition to our ESG targets we are also mindful of how our properties are used and avoiding any reputational damage to the
Company or its stakeholders caused by the operations of our tenants. To this end we monitor the sectors in which both existing and
prospective tenants operate. We do not have an outright embargo on a particular usage, however we have a list of sectors where the
Board will make a judgement on whether a particular usage would pose an unacceptable reputational risk to the Company or its
stakeholders, These sectors are Weapons, Adult Entertainment, Gambling, Tobacco, Nuclear Power, Fossil Fuels, During the year
the Company had one tenant operating in any of these sectors, a company engaged in manufacturing cigarette making equipment,
however this company ceased to be a tenant as at 24 June 2022 when the property in which they were a tenant was sold by the
Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Carbon Report

During the year we worked with EVORA global to baseline our carbon footprint. This invelved writing to all of cur tenants to ask for
their energy usage data for the 2019 and 2020 calendar years, 2019 was chosen as the baseline year to avoid any impact on the
data from COVID-19. Where only partial data was available the actual data was pro-rated across the whole year, Where data was not
provided by tenants, estimates were used. Estimated consumplion was based on GRESE benchmarks, taking into account the
activity taking place in individual units, the floor area and mix of office/warehouse content, the EPC rating, and what utilities were
connected (not all units have a gas supply). We received responses from 25% of tenants, covering 23% of the total floor area of the
portfolio. This includes data that was either based on billed estimates, or incomplete, The remainder of the data therefore had to be
estimated by EVORA,

The results of our 2019 baseline are set out below:

Scope 1 Scope 2 Scope 3 Total
Total energy consumption (MWh) 143 485 16,650 17,288
Carbon emissions (1C0.8) 26 127 4,053 4,206
Carbaon intensity - Scope 1, 2 & 3 (kgCO2e per m2 floor space) 26
Carbon intensity - Scope 1, 2 & 3 (tCO2e per £m net income after administration costs) 515
Carbon intensity - Scope 1 & 2 (tCO2e per Em net income after administration costs) 19
£m net income after administration costs for 2019 calendar year 8

Scope 1 emissicns are from landlord-controlled gas in vacant units. Scope 2 emissions are from landlord-controlled electricity in
vacant units and estate-wide supplies. Scope 3 emissions are from tenant usage of gas, electricity, water, and waste.

The above figures for carbon emissions are on a location-based calculation, using standard emission factors from the UK
Government Emissions Conversion Factors for Greenhouse Gas Company Reporting 2018,

We have not provided a market-based calculation as we have Imited data on tenants' electricity tarffs and any contractual
instruments for the purchase of cerified renewable electricity.

Scope 1 and 2 Emissions

As we have direct control over our scope 1 and 2 emissions, we are able to report them and drive their reduction far more easily than
our scope 3 emissions. Scope 3 emissions make up the vast majority of our emissions, however it is still important for us to achieve
net zero in scope 1 and 2 emissions. Our scope 1 and 2 emissions for the year to 30 June 2022 and prior year are set out below. It is
ultimately our goal to combine the reporting of landlord and tenant emission data and align the reporting cycles, We hope to be able
to achieve this over the next faw years.

Year ended 30 June 2022 Scope 1 Scope 2 Total
Total energy consumption (MWh) 1.4 8.4 39.8
Carbon emissions (1C0we) 0.3 7.4 7.7
Carbon intensity (voids) - Scopes 1 & 2 (kgCO2e per m2 time weighted vacant floor space) 4.4
Carban intensity - Scope 1 & 2 ({COZe per £m net income after administration costs) 0.5
Em net income after administration costs for 2022 financial year 16.8

The above figures for carbon emissions are on a location-based calculation, using standard emission factors from the UK
Government Emissions Conversion Factors for Greenhouse Gas Company Reporting 2022,
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Carbon Report (Continued)

Scope 1 and 2 Emissions (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2021 Scope 1 Scope 2 Total
Total energy consumption (MWh) 521 78.5 130.6
Carbon emissions (1C0.e) 8.5 16.7 26.2
Carbon intensity (voids) - Scopes 1 & 2 (kgCO2e per m2 time weighted vacant floor space) 19.7
Carbon intensity - Scope 1 & 2 (1C0O2e per Em net income after administration costs) 1.9
£m net income after administration costs for 2021 financial year 13.6

The above figures for carbon emissions are on a location-based calculation, using standard emission factors from the UK
Government Emissions Conversion Factors for Greenhouse Gas Company Reporting 2021,

For both the year ended 30 June 2022 and the year ended 30 June 2021, Scope 1 emissions are from landlord-contralled gas in
vacant units. Scope 2 emissions are from landlord-controlled electricity in vacant units and estate-wide supplies.

We have performed a market-based calculation; however it is not presented above given the issues discussed in this report around
high-guality green tariffs and genuine additionality of renewable electricity generation. Using a market-bazed calculation, scope 2
emissions for the year ended 30 June 2022 would be 0.2 tCO2e compared with 7.4 tCO2e for the location-based calculation shown
above, For the year ended 30 June 2021, the market-based figure was 6.7 tCO2e compared with 16.7 tCO2e for the location-based
calculation.

As shown above, both absolute emissions and carbon intensity have fallen in the past financial year compared with the previous
year, Absolute numbers will change in line with the vacancy rate and may include the impact of refurbishment works whera
contractors need to use on site power, The key melric is therefore intensity, both on a floor area basis and net income basis, It is
pleasing to see these both fall. Given the low level that these figures are already at, reducing them further will be a challenge. We will
of course endeavour to do so, particularly reducing scope 1 to zero, moving to high-guality green tariffs where practicable to drive
market-based scope 2 emissions to zero, and looking to improve the efficiency of vacant units through our refurbishment programme.

Path to Net Zero

Az mentioned in the report above, we are aiming to publish out net zero strategy before the end of 2022, Az part of our work with
EVORA to baseline our carbon footprint, they also set out the high-level approach required to achieve net zero, This includes
refurbishments to improve energy efficiency, the electrification of heat given that eliminating the use of natural gas is an integral part
of any decarbonisation strategy, generating renswable energy on-site, procuring energy through high-quality green tanffs, reducing
the impact of embodied carbon in any refurbishments or developments, and finally offsetting. Our offsetting strategy has already been
published on our website; however we will look to develop this further as we look into the potential to acquire carbon credits for future
emissions. We are cognisant of the fact that these interventions will require capital expenditure. We will ensure that any spending is
done so on the basis that we consider it economically prudent, We are confident that in the lang run the bensfit in capital and rental
values from making the right interventions will outweigh their cost, The key is ensuring we make the rght interventions, and that is
what we will look to address as part of our net zero strategy.
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the year to 30 June 2022,

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out in the attached financial statements.

Interim dividends totalling 6.9375 pence per share were declared during the year comprising dividends of 1.5625 pence
per share paid on 1 September 2021, 0.5000 pence per share on 27 October 2021, 1.6250 pence per share on 24
Movember 2021, 1.6250 pence per share on 23 February 2022, and 1.6250 pence per share on 26 May 2022,

Principal Activity and Status
The Company is registered as a public limited company under the Companies Act 2006 (number 9046897). It is an
investment company as defined by Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006.

Taxation
The group operates as a Real Estate Investment Trust and therefore profits and gains from its qualifying property rental
business are expected to be exempt from corporation tax.

Going Concern

The Directors have had regard to the guidance issued by the Financial Reporting Council in assessing the going concern
basis of accounting. After making enguiries and considering the nature of the Company’s business and assets, the
Directors consider that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Therefore the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and their shareholdings were;
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Karl Stephen Stermberg 396,182 396,182
Anna Rule - -
Toby John Grenville Dean 12,053,901 11,853,977
Richard Robert Dury Demarchi 13,258 13,256

Post Balance Sheet Events
Details of post balance sheet events are given in the Chairman’s Report on page 4.

Financial Risk Management
Details of financial risk management are given in Note 23,

Future Development
Details of future developments are disclosed in the Strategic Report on page 6.

Directors' Indemnity Insurance
The directors have a benefit of an indemnity in respect of liabilities arising out of the proper performance of their duties
and an exclusion of liability save to the extent of any negligence, fraud, wilful default and breach of duty.

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors

So far as each of the Directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is
unaware. Additionally, the directors have taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in
order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's Auditor is aware of
that information.
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Auditor

The Independent Auditor's Report can be found on page 22. Moore Kingston Smith LLP were appointed as auditor to the
company and in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution proposing that they be re-
appointed will be put at a General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 14 November 2021.

By order of the Board

Clipstone Investment Management Limited
Secretary

3 October 2022
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBEILITIES

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and the
profit or loss of the Company and the Group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH
s172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2006

The board of directors of Clipstone Industrial REIT ple consider, both individually and together, that they have acted in
the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its
members as a whole (having regard to the stakeholders and matters set out in s172{1)(a-f) of the Act) in the decisions
taken during the year ended 30 June 2022, In particular, by reference to the Strategic Report on page 5.

The directors of Clipstone Industrial REIT ple — and those of all UK companies — must act in accordance with a set of
general duties. These duties are detailed in the UK's Companies Act and include a duty to promote the success of the
Company, which is summarised below. As part of their induction, the directors are briefed on their duties and they can
access professional advice on these — either through the Company or, if they judge it necessary, from an independent
provider,

Typically, in Alternative Investment Funds such as Clipstone Industrial REIT ple, the directors fulfil their duties partly
through a governance framework that delegates day-to-day decision-making to an Alternative Investment Fund Manager
and a Property Manager, The Alternative Investment Fund Manager is Clipstone Capital Limited and the Property
Manager is Clipstone Invesiment Management Limited.

The Board recognises that such delegation needs to be much more than simple financial authorities and, in this section
of the report, we have summarised our governance structure, which covers: the values and behaviours expected of our
employees; the standards they must adhere to; how we engage with stakeholders; and how the Board looks to ensure
that we have a robust system of control and assurance processes.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

Section 172 of the UK's Companies Act
In summary, as required by Section 172 of the UK's Companies Act, a director of a company must act in the way (s)he
considers, in good faith, would most likely promote the success of the company for the benefit of its shareholders. In
doing this, the director must have regard, amongst other matters, to the:

- likely consequences of any decisions in the long term;

- interests of the company's employees;

- need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

- impact of the company's operations on the community and environment;

- company’s reputation for high standards of business conduct, and

- need to act fairly as between members of the company.

Stakeholders

A board should communicate effectively with its shareholders and understand their views, and also act fairly as between
different members. Fostering business relationships with key stakehaolders, such as customers — in our case our tenants -
and suppliers, is also important to a company's success. A board should have visibility of these relationships so that it is
able to take stakeholder considerations into account when making decisions. In their decision-making, directors need to
have regard to the impact of a company's operations on the community and environment.

Overview of how the Board performed its duties

Shareholders

The Board receives regular updates from the Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM) of the Company on feedback
received from investors. The AIFM sends out quarterly updates to all shareholders and has regular conversations with
individual shareholders. The feedback received has been positive and the AIFM will continue to engage actively with all
of our shareholders.

Employees
The company does not have any employees other than the directors.

Tenants

The Property Manager closely monitors the relationship with all our tenants, whether that be directly, via our managing
agents or other third-party asset managers. At all scheduled Board meetings, the Property Manager briefs the Board on
our performance in delivering on our commitments to tenants and the quality of these critical relationships. Providing
safe, well-maintained, and functional properties to our tenants is key in retaining and attracting tenants, as well as being
responsive and reasonable with any gueries or requests tenants have.

Suppliers

The Board recognises that our key supplier relationships are with our managing agent and Property Manager. The Board
meets regularly with the Property Manager to receive updates on the performance of the property portfolio and to discuss
future plans for our assets.

Community and environment
The Board recognises the importance of leading a company that not only generates value for shareholders but also
contributes to wider society,

As a real estate investment company, we recognise that environmental and climate risks could impact us directly, and we
are committed to reducing the environmental impact of our operations and buildings and minimising our environmental
footprint. The Beard has mandated that our businesses implement the requirements of our Responsible Property
Investment Policy, which details our commitment to high standards of environmental management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Clipstone Industrial REIT Ple (‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 30 June 2022 which comprise the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
Staternent of Financial Position, the Parent Company Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewark
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102
‘The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the Financial Statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended,
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiliies for the audit of the financial
staternents section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included reviewing forecasts and cashflows, discussions with
management and assessing the cradit profile of tenants within the property portfalio.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
lzast twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the respensibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
staternents of the current period and include the most significant assessed nsks of material misstaternent (whether or not
due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC (Continued)

Key audit matter and description Audit Approach

Valuation of investment properties

The group holds an investment portfolic of logistics and| -  We assessed the Group's external property valuer's
industrial properties, with an aim to generate capital returns for objectivity, professional qualifications and resources
its sharehalders. The value of this partfolio forms the majarity of to complete this service.,

the balance sheet assets.
- We reviewed and audited the independent valuation
report  provided to  wus, challenging the key

The valuation of investment properties requires an estimation assumptions and the valuation methodology used with
and the directors enlist the services of an independent valuer to reference to publically available industry data and
assist in this regard. industry experience.

- We have analytically reviewed the movement in the
valuation of properties from the prior year, and
obtained the rationale for any change not in line with
our expectations. We based our expectations on our
experience and current industry benchmarks.

- We reviewed the information provided by the Group to
the external property wvaluer and verified these to
supporting documentation,

- We considered the adequacy of the Company's
disclosures about the degree of estimation and
sensitivity to key assumptions made when valuing
properties.

Our application of materiality

The scape and focus of our audit was influsnces by our assessment and application of materiality. We define materiality as
the magnitude of misstatement that could reasonably be expected to influence the readers and the economic decisions of
the users of the financial statements. We use materiality to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements
as awhole.

Due to the nature of the Group we considered the gross asset value to be the main focus for the readers of the financial
staternents, accordingly this consideration influenced our judgement of materiality. Based on our professional judgement,
we determined materiality for the Group to be £2,115,768, based upon a percentage of gross assets.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the overall control environment, our judgement was
that performance materiality {i.e. our tolerance for misstatement in an individual account or balance) for the Group was 50%
of materiality, namely £1,057 884,

We agreed to report to the directors all audit differences in excess of £105, 788, as well as differences below that threshold
that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also reported to the directors on disclosure matters that we
identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide
controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level. The entire Group is audited by one audit team,
led by the senior statutory auditor. Our approach in respect of key audit matters is set out in the table in the Key Audit
Matters Section above.

The audit is performed centrally and comprises all of the companies with the Group all of which were visited by audit teams.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC (Continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's repart thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are reguired to determine whether there is a material misstaternent in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’' report for the financial year for which the Financial
Statements are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements; and
the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

adeqguate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 10, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determing is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC (Continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The ohjectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of matenal
misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those assessed risks; and to
respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the primary responsibility
for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with bath management and those charged with governance of the group.

Our approach was as follows:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatary requirements applicable to the group and considered
that the most significant are the Companies Act 2006, UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, and UK taxation legislation.

We obtained an understanding of how the group complies with these requirements by discussions with
management and those charged with governance.

We assessed the risk of material misstaterment of the financial statements, including the risk of matenal
misstatement due to fraud and how it might occur, by holding discussions with management and those charged

We inquired of management and those charged with govemnance as to any known instances of non-compliance ar
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. This included making enguiries of management and those charged with
governance and obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.

Other responsibilities
As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs (UK) we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also;

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor,
design and perform audit procaedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the group’s or the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the group or the parent company to cease to confinue as a going concerm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represant the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infarmation of the entities or business activities
within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible far the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC (Continued)

Other responsibilities (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefare the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken for no purpose other than to draw to the attention of the company’'s members
those matters which we are required to include in an auditor's report addressed to them. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to any party other than the company and company's members as a body, for

our work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Moo B Qi L

Matthew Meadows (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor
Devonshire House

8 Appold Street

Londaon

EC2A ZAP

3 October 2022
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Year ended Year ended
MNotes 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
Turnover - Rental income 17,087,729 13,999,161
Cost of sales
- Direct property expenses (683,058) (1.091,991)
- Property management expenses (3,186,295) (2,401,921)
(3,869,353) (3,493,912)
Gross profit 13,218,376 10,505,245
Other operating income 6,391 -
Administrative expenses (333,592) (446 604)
Gain on disposal of investment properties 7 28,920,932 654,205
Value adjustments
- Fair value of investment properties 12 53,837,268 18,650,668
- Value of incentives on investment properties 12 (4086,358) {793,278)
- Derivative financial instruments - -
82,024,641 18,064,991
Operating profit 4 95,243,017 28,570,240
Interest receivable 4,013 1,189
Interest payable 8 (2,462,446) (1,482,527)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 92,784,584 27.088.902
Corporation tax a - -
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 92,784,584 27,088,902
Earnings per ordinary share
Basic and diluted (pence per share) 1 70.8 221

Turnover and profit on ordinary activities are derived whaolly from continuing activities,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Investment properties

Current assets
Debtars
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year

Met current (liabilities)/assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year

Met assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premium account
Capital reduction reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Investment revaluation reserve
Profit and loss account

Shareholders” funds

MNet asset value per ordinary share (pence)

The Company's profit for the year was £21,759,309 (2021; £5,704,942).

Notes

12

14

15

16

19
19
19

20

30 June 2022

£

343,582,098

343,582,098

65,122,873
4,448,593

30 June 2021

£

204, 289,416

69,571,466

(84,716,090)

294 289 416

11,370,107
3,682,109

(15,144,624)

15,052,216

(6,774,969)

328,437,474

(31,225,528)

8,277,247

297,211,946

302,566,663

(94.615,722)

1,314,943
127,141,330
39,000,000
62,727
85,159,876
44,533,070

207,950,941

297,211,946

1,279,848
121,577,585
39,000,000
62,727
34,954,922
11,075,861

207,950,941

226

162

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board on 3 October 2021 and were signed on its
behalf by:-

Toby Dean

Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year

Met current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year

Met assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital
Share premium account
Capital reduction reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ funds

Motes

13

14

15

16

19
19
19

30 June 2022

£

187,419,387

421,273
111,266

532,539

(1,313,605)

30 June 2021

£

168,199 387

5,578
1,867,948

(781,066)

1,873,524

{1,670,320)

203,204

186,638,321

168,402,591

186,638,321

168,402,591

1,314,943
127,141,230
39,000,000
62,727
19,119,321

1,279,846
121,577,585
39,000,000
62,727
6,482 433

186,638,321

168,402,591

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board on 3 October 2022 and were signed on its

behalf by:-

Toby Dean

Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CLIPSTOME INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2022

Balance at 1 July 2020
Shares issued in the year
Share issue costs

Profit for the year

Realisad gains on disposal of investmant
proparty recognised in previous periods

Consolidation adjustment releasad on
dispoesal of investment properties

Unrealised loss an ravaluation of
invastmant property transferred

to revaluation reserve

Lease incentive valuation adjustment
fransferred to revaluabon reserve

Dividends paid (see naota 10)
Balance at 30 June 2021
Shares izsued in the year
Share issue costs

PFrofit for the year

Realised gains on dispasal of investmant
praparty recognised in previous periods

Consolidation adjusiment releasad on
disposal of investment properties

Unrealzed gain an revaluation of
investment property transferred

to revaluation resarve

Lease incenfive valuation adjustment
transferred to revaluation reserve

Dividends paid (see note 10)

Balance at 30 June 2022

Capital Capital
Share Share Reduction Redemption Revaluation  Retained
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ E
1,182,494 108,679,842 39,000,000 82727 17355774 8637885 174928728
BT 352 12,903,736 - - = 12,991.088
- (&,000) - - - - {6,000}
- - = 27088902 27 0888902
- - - - (215,000) 215,000 -
- - - (38.242) 39,242 =
- - - - 1BES0E68 (18650 668) -
- - (793,278) TH327E
. - - - - [7.051,778) (7,051.778)
1279645 121,577 585 39,000,000 62,727 24054922 11075861 207050641
35,097 5,066,745 - - - 5,601 842
- (3,000) - - - - {3,000}
- - - - - BZ7TB4 584 52784 584
- - - = {3172.000) 3,172,000
- - - - (53,856) 53 958 =
- - - - 53,837,268 (53,837 268) -
- - (406 358) 406,358 .
- - - - (2122421)  (9,122.421)
1,314,943 127,141,330 33,000,000 62,727 85159876 44,533,070 297,211,946

Ratained sarnings and tha capital reduction reserve are distributabla to shareholders by way of dividends.

The accompanying rotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CLIPSTOME INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Balance at 1 July 2020
Shares issued in the year
Share issue costs

Profit for the year

Dividends paid (see note 10)
Balance at 30 June 2021
Shares issued in the year
Share issue costs

Profit for the year

Dividends paid (see note 10)

Balance at 30 June 2022

Capital Capital
Share Share Reduction Redemption Retained
Capital Eremium Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,192,404 108,679,849 35,000,000 62,727 7,829,269 156,764,339
87,352 12903736 - - - 12,991,088
- (6.000) - - - (6,000)
- - - - 5,704,942 5,704,042
- - - - (7,081,778) (7,051,778)
1,279,846 121,577,585 39,000,000 62,727 6482433 168,402 591
35,097 5,568,745 - - - 5,601,842
- (3.000) - - - (3,000)
- - - - 21,759,309 21,759,309
- - - - (8122421) (9,122,421)
1,314,943 127,141,330 39,000,000 62,727 19,119,321 186,638,321

Retained earnings and the capital reduction reserve are distributable to shareholders by way of dividends.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Praofit for the financial year

Adjustments for:

ain on disposal of investment properties
Unrealised revaluation of investment properties
Movement in lease incentive valuation
Unrealised value adjustment of derivative financial instruments
Impairment of goodwill

Interest payable

Interest receivable

Corporation tax

Change in debtors and accrued income
Change in creditors and accruals

Year ended

30 June 2022

£

92,784,584

(28,920,932)
(53,837,268)
406,358

2,462,446
(4,013)

(863,069)
614,113

Cash from operations

Interest paid
Interest received
Corporation tax paid

12,642,219

(1,736,212)
4,013

Year ended

30 June 2021

£

27,088,902

(654,205)
(18,650,668)
793,278

1,482,527
{1,189)

(2.280,.418)
133,881

Net cash from operating activities

10,810,020

7,912,108

(1,022,288)
1,189

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash

Purchase of investment property and capital expenditure
Disposal of investment properties

(37,393,078)
17,453,009

6,891,009

Net cash from investing activities

{19,940,069)

(50,522,192)
(3,250)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares (net of issue costs)
Repurchase of Company shares

Froceeds from loan financing (net of fees)

Loan repayments

Repayments under finance leases

Dividends paid

5,598,842

18,083,980

(4,225,965)
(116,974)

(9,762,345)

(50.525,442)

Net cash from financing activities

9,577,538

12,985,088
38,562,949

(116,973)
(6.411,854)

Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

547,489

3,682,109

45,019,210

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

4,229,598

1,384 777

2,297,332

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash

4,229,598

3,682,108

4,228,598

3,682,108

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

Corporate information

Clipstone Logistics REIT ple (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and
Wales whose shares are publicly traded on The International Stock Exchange.

Basis of Preparation and Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation of financial statements
A summary of the principal accounting policies of the Group, which have been applied consistently throughout the
year, is set out below.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 - the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) - and with the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties. The presentation currency is £ sterling.

The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included its own
staterment of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The Company's profit for the year was
£21,759,309 (2021: £5,704,942).

The individual financial statements of the Company have also adopted the following disclosure exemptions:
- the requirement to present a statement of cash flows, as per FRS 102.1.12(b).
- financial instrument disclosure including categories of financial instruments, as per FRS 102.1.12(c).

Basis of Consclidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries, as at the balance sheet date. Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists
where the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to direct the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. All intragroup transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

Business Combinations

The group acquires subsidiaries that own investment properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers
whether each acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acquisition of an asset. The Group accounts
far an acquisition as a business combination, by applying the purchase method, where an integrated set of activities is
acquired in addition to property.

The cost of a business combination is the fair value of the consideration given, liabilities incurred or assumed and of
equity instruments issued plus the costs directly attributable to the business combination.

Where such acquisitions are not judged to be the acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business
combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the entity based upon their fair values at the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred taxes
arise.

Going Concern

After due consideration of the future cash flows of the Company, the Directors are confident that the Company has
sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as a going concern for the foreseeable future, being more than 12
manths from the date of approving the financial statements.

While the restrictions on activity and the accompanying economic shock in response to COVID-19 has caused a
number of businesses across the UK to experience significant difficulties, to date the Company has coped well. Rent
collection has remained strong and with the new debt facility to draw upon the Directors are confident that the
Company is well positioned to continue as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. The industrial real estate
market is experiencing growth so even if there are further restrictions imposed due to COVID-19, the Company
remains in & good position to recover strongly and take advantage of any new opportunities as they arise.
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CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 Basis of Preparation and Accounting Policies (continued)

Going Concern (continued)

The group's loan facility with Barclays expires in April 2023 meaning that the £77 340,000 outstanding balance is
included in creditors falling due within ane year creating a net current liability position for the group. As outlined in the
strategic report, heads of terms have been signed subject to the year end to extend this facility by a further 30 months.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

(b) Revenue Recognition

Rental Income

Rental income excluding Value Added Tax arising on investment properties is accounted for in the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms of the individual leases. Lease incentives are
amortised on a straight-ling basis over the lease term. Rental income received in advance is recognised as deferred
income and disclosed within creditors. Rental income earned but not received is recognised as accrued income and
disclosed within debtors.

Interest Income
Interest income is accounted for on an effective interest rate method.

(c) Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. The Group's management and administration fees, finance costs
and all cther expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

(d) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been approved and declared.
(e) Taxation

The group operates as a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) and therefore profits and gains from its qualifying
property rental business are expected to be exempt from direct taxation provided the REIT conditions are met.

Taxation on any profit or loss for the period not exempt under UK-REIT regulations comprises current and deferred
tax. Taxation is recognised in the statement of comprehansive income.

Corporation tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less
tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences between the Company's
taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in
tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as probable that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

(fy Investments in Subsidiaries

The Company recognises investment in subsidiaries at cost less impairment in its statement of financial position.

(g) Investment Properties

Investment properties consist of land and buildings which are not cccupied for use by or in the operations of the

Group or for sale in the ordinary course of business but are held to earm rental income together with the potential for
capital and income growth.
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2 Basis of Preparation and Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, baing the fair value of consideration given, including transaction
costs associated with the investment property. Any subsequent capital expenditure incurred in improving investment
properties is capitalised in the period incurred and included within the book costs of the property.

(g) Investment Properties (continued)

After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. Deferred tax is not provided on these gains or losses as corporation tax is not
expected to be paid on capital gains arising from the Group's qualifying property rental business under the REIT
regime. Fair valug is based on an independent open market valuation provided by a RICS recognised Chartered
Surveyar, at the balance sheet date using recognised valuation techniques.

In arriving at the fair valug in the statement of financial position, any deferred rent receivable or lease incentives are
taken into consideration in reporting the carrying amount of the investmeant properties.

(h) Rent and Other Debtors

Debtors are recognised initially at fair value, subsequently at amortised cost. A provision for impairment is established
where there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the debtors concerned.

Rents receivable, which are generally due for settlement at the relevant quarter end are recognised and carried at the
original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectable amounts. An estimate for doubtful debts is made
when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Amounts collected by managing agents and held in cash by managing agents in accounts contralled by the managing
agent on behalf of the Company are included within other debtors.

(i} Cash at Bank and in Hand

Cash at bank and in hand consists of cash held in banks and on-demand deposits in banks.
(j) Creditors

Creditors are recognised intially at fair value, subsequently at amortised cost,

(k] Loans

Loans are initially measured at proceeds net of direct issue costs and subsequently measured at amartised cost.
Interest payable is accounted for on an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

(I} Finance leases

At the commencement of the lease term, rights of use and obligations under finance leases are recognised as assetls
and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease. Any initial direct costs of
the lease are added to the amount recognised as an asset. The present value of the minimum lease payments is
calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

After initial recognition, minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability using the effective interest method.

The value of investment properties held under finance leases will be measured at the gross value before deductions
far any recognised lease liability. The lease liability is added back to the assessed fair value with changes in present
value of the remaining net lease liability being accounted for as changes in fair value of the investment property
through the statement of comprehensive income.
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2 Basis of Preparation and Accounting Policies (continued)

{m) Critical accounting judgements and key estimations of uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires management to make significant
judgements and estimates.

The area where the Group considers the judgements and key estimations of uncertainty to be most significant involve
assumptions or estimates applied in respect of the valuation of investment properties.

The value of property and property related assets is inherently subjective due to the individual nature of each property,
its location and the expected future rental revenues from that particular property.

In determining the value of investment properties, valuers are required to make assumptions in respect of matters
including, but not limited to, the existence of willing sellers in uncertain market conditions, title, condition of structure
and services, deleterious materials, plant and machinery and goodwill, environmental matters, statutory requirements
and planning, the structural condition of the properties, tenure and other information. These assumptions are market
standard and accord with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation — Professional Standards
2012

Such assumptions invalve a degree of estimation uncertainty and are made on the basis of assumptions which may
not prove to be accurate, particularly in periods of volatility or when there is limited real estate transactional data
against which property valuations can be benchmarked. Incorrect assumptions underlying the valuation reports could
negatively affect the value of Group's investment properties and thereby have a material adverse effect on the
Group's financial position. This risk is minimised by the appointment of external property valuers who are independent
and professional.

Additionally, judgement is required regarding recognising the profit or loss on disposal of an investment property. This
is recognised at the point of exchange when substantially all of the risks and rewards transfer from the company to the
buyer.

3 Segmental Information

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group is engaged in a single segment business, being the investment in the
United Kingdom in industrial properties. The results reported represent the segment results for the Group.

4 Operating Profit

Operating profit is stated after charging:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for:
- audit of the Company's annual accounts 40,000 33,500
- audit of the Company's subsidiaries’ annual accounts 12,500 12,600
- Group tax compliance services 5,000 500
5 Particulars of Employees
The Group had no employees during the year (2021 - nil), other than the directars.
6 Directors’ Emoluments
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
Directors’ emoluments for the Group 84,600 63,357

The directors received fixed fees and are not entitled to any further remuneration.
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7 Gain on Disposal of Investment Properties

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£ £

Disposal proceeds 70,918,368 4 360,213
Book cost (38,353,000) (3,356,000)
Unrealised losses/(gains) recognised in prior periods (3,172,000) (219,000)
Disposal costs (288,792) (64, TE2)
Lease incentive asset reversed on disposal {183 644) (66, 246)
28,920,932 654,205

On 3 March 2022, the Company disposed of its estate in Slough for £13,233,000, realising a profit for the year of
£4 989 BG5S, and £5 460 865 since acquisition.

On 24 June 2022, the Company unconditionally exchanged contracts for the sale of nine properties. The sale
completad on 26 July 2022 for £57,695 368, realising a profit for the year of £23,933 1682 and £26 634, 182 since

acquisition.

8 Interest Payable

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
Bank loan interest payable 1,830,335 1,068,795
Bank loan issue costs 415,311 295 583
Interest payable on finance leases 116,800 116,815
Other interest payable - 1,334
2,462,446 1,482,527
9 Corporation Tax
Year ended Year ended

Current tax;
LIK corporation tax on profits for the year

E £

The tax charge for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK during the year of 19%. The

differences are explained below:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£ £

Profit before tax 92,784 584 27,088,902
Corporation tax at effective rate of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) 17,628,071 5,146,891

Effect of:

Revaluation of property investments (10,206, 289) (3,694 350)

REIT tax exempt property rental profits and gains (7, 322,782) (1,452.542)

Effective corporation tax rate 0.0% 0.0%

a7
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10

11

12

Dividends

Interim dividends paid of 6.9375p (2021 - 5.7125p) per ordinary share

Year ended

30 June 2022

£

9,122 421

Year ended
30 June 2021
£

7,051,778

An interim dividend of 1.625 pence per share was declared on 11 August 2022 and paid on 25 August 2022,

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. As there are no dilutive instruments
outstanding. basic and diluted earnings per share are identical.

Net profit atiributable to ordinary shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
Issued ordinary shares at the start of the year

Effect of shares issued during the year

Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share (pance)

Investment Properties

Cost

Brought farward
Additions
Disposals
Carried forward

Revaluation

Brought farward

Revaluation during the year
Revaluation reversed on disposals
Carried forward

Value per independent valuer

Deferred lease incentives (note 14)
Brought farward

Movement during the year

Reversed on disposals

Carried forward

Long leasehold valuations
Brought farward
Revaluation during the year
Carried forward

Carrying value

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
92,784 584 27,088,902
127,984 639 119,249 445
2,979,393 3488044
130,064,032 122 737,489
70.8 22.1
30 June 2022 30 June 2022 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Freshold Leasehold Total Total
£ 3 £ £
250,550,268 8,097 847 258,648,115 212,085 656
37,386,772 - 37,386,772 49,918,459
(38,353,000 - (38,353,000) (3,356,000)
249 584,040 8,087 847 257 681,887 258 648 115
35974732 4771583 36,451,885 18,019,344
52 463,228 1,375,000 53,838,228 18,651.541
{3,172,000) - (3,172,000 (219,000}
85,265,960 1,852,153 87,118,113 36,451 885
334,850,000 8,950,000 3dd, 800,000 285,100,000
{1.962 621) (70,276) (2,032,887) (1,239.619)
(568.617) (21,3858) (580,002) (849 524)
183 544 - 183,644 56,246
(2.347 584) (81,661) (2,439 255) (2 032 897)
- 1,222,313 1,222,313 1,223,186
- (960) (960) (873}
- 1,221,353 1,221,353 1,222,313
332,502 406 11,079,692 343 582 098 204 289 416
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13

Investment Properties (Continued)

On 3 March 2022 the Group unconditionally disposed of its estate in Slough for £13,233,000. The property had a book
cost of £7,679,000 and a carrying value of £8,150,000.

On 24 June 2022, the Company unconditionally exchanged contracts for the sale of nine properties. The sale
completed on 26 July 2022 for £57 695,368, The properties had a book cost of £30,738,000 and a carrying value of
£33,375,000.

During the year, the Group acquired four new assets located in Crawley, Reading, Banbury, and Sevenoaks. These
properties were acquired for a total of £35,176,0086 plus purchase costs.

The Group has restated the valuation of its long leasehold investment properties in ling with FRS 102 section 20 to
recognise these assets as investment properties held under finance leases. In addition, to avoid double counting of
fair value in the statement of financial position, any deferred rent receivable is taken into consideration in reporting the
carrying amount of the investmeant properties.

The fair value of investment properties at 30 June 2022 was determined by the Group's independent valuer, Calliers
International Valuation UK LLP. The valuations are in accordance with RICS standards and were arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transactions for similar properties. The valuations performed by the independent
valuer are reviewed internally by senior management and the directors.

The valuer's opinion of fair value was primarily derived using comparable recent market transactions on arm's length
terms and using appropriate valuation technigues. The fair value of investment properties is determined using the
income capitalisation approach. Under this approach, forecast net cash flows, based upon current market derived
estimated rental values (market rents) together with estimated costs, are discounted at market derived capitalisation
rates to produce the valuer's opinion of fair value. The average discount rate, which, if applied to all cash flows, would
produce the fair value, is described as the equivalent yield.

Investment in Subsidiaries
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£ £
Cost
Brought forward 168,198,387 148,986 476
Additions 15,220,000 19,315,000
Disposals - (102,089)
Carried forward 187,418,387 168,199, 387

During the year the Company acquired a further 19,220,000 shares in Chpstone Ten Limited at £1 each.
On 9 December 2019 the Group acquired all of the share capital in Clipstone Feeder Limited in exchange for new
shares issued in the Company for £1.4274 each. Applying merger relief account to this transaction, these shares were
accounted for at nominal value, being £23 088, In addition to this, the Company applied for further shares in Clipstone
Feeder Limited for £19,185, and incurred costs on acquisition of £59 815 which were capitalised.
During the pravious year the Company disposed of its holdings in Clipstone Feeder Limited.

Principal Date of Country of

Activi A isiti | i 0 ip %

Direct subsidiaries
Clipstone Ten Limited Property Investmeant 2 June 2014 LK 100%
Clipstone IX Limited Property Investmeant 17 Dec 2014 LK 100%

All of the above entities have been included in the consolidated financial statements, The registered addresses of all
the above subsidiaries is 45 Albemarle Street, London, W1S 4JL.
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15

Debtors
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
Group
Prepayments and accrued income 703,121 5,306,608
Trade debtors 1,633,338 1,500,690
Deferred lease incentives 2,439 255 2,032 897
Other debtors B0,447 159 26204912
65,122,873 11,370,107
Company
Prepayments and accrued income 25,023 5678
Ciue from group undertakings 386,250 -
421273 5578
Included within trade debtors are provisions of £315,239 (2021 - £356,296) for doubtful debts.
There were no debtors due after more than one year.
All intercompany loans are issued at market rates and are repayable on demand,
Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
Group
Finance lease liabilities (see note 17) 190 170
Trade creditors 81,6584 32,716
Rental income in advance 3,886,085 3,349,451
Accruals 1,958,685 1,392 876
Withholding taxes and other taxes 941,216 722221
Bank loans - due within one year 77,240,000 -
Dividends payable - 639,924
Other creditors 507,229 637,611
84,716,090 6,774,969
Company
Trade creditors 824 (35)
Accruals 1,047,239 813,538
Withholding taxes and other taxes 265 542 216,893
Dividends payable - 639,924
1,313,605 1,670,320

During the year the group extended its existing revalving credit facility with Barclays by £1,700,000. This loan matures
an 29 April 2023 and is secured by charges over the investment properties owned by Clipstone IX Limited and a
debenture from Clipstone X Limitaed. Interest is paid at 1.61% over SOMIA on a quarterly basis.

Term loans of £45 640,000 and a £31,700,000 revolving credit facility expire on 29 April 2023, They are secured by
charges aver the investment properties owned by Clipstone X Limited and a debenture from Clipstone X Limited.
Interest is paid at 1.61% over three manth SONIA on a gquartery basis. All of the facilities with Barclays share financial
covenants. The interest cover covenant is 200% and the loan to value covenant §5%.
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16 Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £
Group
Bank loans - due between one and two years - -
Bank loans - due between two and five years - 93,390,000
Bank loans - due in more than five years 30,000,000 -
Finance lease liabilities (see note 17) 1,225,528 1,225722
31,225,528 94 615,722

During the year the group drew down the remaining £12,250,000 of its £30,000,000 loan facility with Legal and
General Investment Management ("LGIM™). The facility matures on 30 July 2028 and is secured by charges over the
investment properties owned by Clipstone Ten Limited and a security agreement covering the assets of Clipstone Ten

Limited. Interest is paid at a fixed rate of 2.20% on a quarterly basis.

17  Finance Leases 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £

Included within current liabilities 190 170

Included within non-current liabilities 1,225,528 1,225 722

1,225,718 1,225,892

Future minimum lease payments due under finance leases:

within one year 116,973 116,973

in more than one year and less than five years 467,892 467 892

in more than five years 8,369,579 B 486,552
8,054 444 9071417

The Group's finance leases relate to three long leasehold investment property holdings, the value of which is shown in

note 12,

18 Contingent Liabilities

The Company's loan facility agreement with LGIM contains provisions for a redemption fee payable to the lender
should we decide to make an early repayment. The Board has no intention of making any early repayments. The valus

of the redemption fee as at 30 June 2022 was £nil (2021: £1,525,134).

19 Share Capital and Reserves

Capital
Number of Share Share Reduction 30 June 2022
Shares Capital Premium Reserve Total
£ £ £ £
Issued and fully paid
At 1 July 2021
(127,984,639 ordinary
shares of £0.01) 127 884 639 1,279 846 121,577,685 35,000,000 161,857 431
3,509,708 ordinary shares of
1p each, issued at 158.61p 3,508,706 35,097 5,566,745 - 5,801,842
Share Issue costs - - (3,000) - {3,000)
At 30 June 2022 131,494 345 1,314,943 127,141,330 35,000,000 167 456,273

The shares are listed on the Official List of The International Stock Exchange.

On 25 August 2021, the Company issued 3,500,706 ordinary shares of £0.01 2ach at a premium of £1.5861 each.
These shares were admitted to listing on the International Stock Exchange on 26 August 2021,
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20

21

22

Share Capital and Reserves (continued)

The capital reduction reserve was brought about by a reduction in the Company's share premium and is distributable
to shareholders.

Met Asset Value

The Group's net asset value per ordinary share is 226.03p based on shareholders’ funds of £297 211,946 and
131,494,345 ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

Mo adjustment has been made for any potential performance fee due to the Property Manager (Clipstone Investment
Management Limited). If the investment properties were sold at their values at 30 June 2022, there would be a
performance fee payable of £19 875 458 (15.12p per sharg). The net asset value net of the potential performance fee
was 210.91p per share at 30 June 2022,

A reconciliation of the net asset value as shown in these financial statements to the net asset value of the Group as
published on The International Stock Exchange is shown below:

Net Asset Value Net Asset
Value per
Share
£ £
Met asset value as shown in these financial statements 287,211,946 2.2603
Fair value adjustment to remove finance lease accounting for
lang leasehold investment properties 4 364 -
Performance fee pravision (15,875 458) (0.1512)
Met asset value as published on the International Stock
Exchange as at 30 June 2022 277,340,854 2.1091

Capital Commitments
The Group had an no outstanding capital commitments at 30 June 2022 (2021: none).
Related Party Transactions

The Directors are considered to be related parties. The Directors are engaged under letters of appointment and da
not have service contracts with the Company. The Directors are required to retire by rotation and seek re-election at
least every three years and their appointments are terminable by the director or the Company giving three months'
notice.

Directors’ emoluments of £84 600 were paid during the year (2021: £63 357). £nil was payable at 30 June 2022
(2021: £nil).

Toby Dean is a director and shareholder, and Richard Demarchi a director of the Property Manager, Clipstons
Investmeant Management Limited. Clipstone Investment Management Limited charged property management fees of
£3,186,295 to the Company during the year (2021: £2,.401,921) of which £885 880 was outstanding at the year end
(2021: £651,895).

Toby Dean is a director and indirect sharehalder, and Richard Demarchi a director of the Alternative Investment Fund
Manager, Clipstone Capital Limited. Clipstone Capital Limited charged fund management fees of £20,000 to the
Company during the year (2021: £20,000) of which £5,000 was outstanding at the year end (2021: £5,000).

During the year the Group was charged £807 812 (2021: £527,793) in insurance premiums by Clipstone Capital
Limited, of which £nil was outstanding at the year end (2021: £11,733). Clipstone Capital Limited is autharised to
arrange insurance by the Financial Conduct Authority, and is not the underwriter. All leases with tenants of the Group
are on a full repairing and insuring basis and so wheare a unit is occupied the cost of insurance is recharged in full to
the tenant. The Group only incurs the cost of insurance for vacant properties and any insurance relating to
developments. During the year the cost of insurance to the Group was £30,171 (2021: £12 557). All transactions were
carried out at arm's length.
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23 Financial Risk Management

Consistent with its objective the Group will hold UK commercial property investments. In addition the Group's financial
instruments comprise cash and receivables and payables that arise directly from its operations. The Group uses
derivative instruments to mitigate interest rate risk.

The Group is exposed to various types of risk that are associated with financial instruments. The mast important types
are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and market price risk. There s no foreign currency risk as all assets and
liabilities of the Group are maintained in pounds sterling.

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing the Group's risk exposure. These policies are summarised
below and have remained unchanged for the period under review. Thase disclosures include, where appropriate,
consideration of the Group's investment properties which, whilst not constituting financial instrumants as defined by
FRS 102, are considered by the Board to be integral to the Group's overall risk exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s financial assets and liabilities into the categories required by FRS 102:
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£ £

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost 67,335,007 8244918
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss - -
Financial liabilities that are debt instruments measured at

amortised cost 111,114,316 97,319,019

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that it has entered
into with the Group.

In the event of default by a tenant if it is in financial difficulty or otherwise unable to meet its obligations under the
lease the Group will suffer a rental shortfall and incur additional expenses until the property is re-let. These expenses
could include legal and surveyor's costs in reletting, maintenance costs, insurances, rates and marketing costs and
will have a material adverse impact on the financial condition and performance of the Group andfor the level of
dividend cover, The Board receives regular reports on concentrations of risk and any tenants in amrears. The
Property Manager monitors such reports in order to anticipate and minimise the impact of defaults by occupational
tenants.

There were no financial assets which were either past due or considered impaired at 30 June 2022 (2021; none).

All the Group's cash is placed with financial institutions with a long-term credit rating of A or better. Bankruptcy or
insolvency of such financial institutions may cause the Group's ability to access cash placed on deposit to be delayed
or limited. Should the credit quality or the financial position of the banks currently employed significantly deteriorate,
cash holdings would be moved to another bank,

Liguidity Risk

Ligquidity nsk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in realising assets or otherwise raising funds to meet
financial commitments. The Group's investments comprise UK commercial properties, Property and property-related
assets in which the Group invests are not traded in an organised public market and may be illiquid. As a result the
Group may not be able to liquidate quickly its investments in these properties at an amount close to their fair value in
order to meet its liquidity requirements,

The Group's liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Alternative Investment Fund Manager and monitored
on a quarterly basis by the Board. In order to mitigate ligquidity risk the Group aims to have adequate resources
(including the expected proceeds of any property sales) to meet its cbligations for a period of at least twelve months.,

Interest Rate Risk

Some of the Company's financial instruments are interest-bearing. As a consequence, the Company will be exposed
to interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing market rate.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)
However, the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is not materially different from their carrying valug in the
financial statements.

When the Group retains cash balances, they will ordinarily be held on interest-bearing deposit accounts. The Group's
policy is to haold cash in variable rate or short term fixed rate bank accounts. Exposure varies throughout the year as a
consequence of changes in the composition of the net assets of the Group arising out of the investment and risk
management policies.

The Group uses bank barrowings to help fund its activities which will expose the Group to interest rate risk in future
periods. The Group uses derivative instruments to mitigate this interest rate risk.

Market Risk

The management of market risk is part of the investment management process and is typical of a property investment
company. The portfolic is managed with an awareness of the effects of adverse valuation movements through
detailed and continuing analysis, with an objective of maximising overall retumns to shareholders. Investments in
property and property-related assets are inherently difficult to value due to the individual nature of each property. As a
result, valuations are subject to substantial uncertainty. There is no assurance that the estimates resulting from the
valuation process will reflect the actual sales price even where such sales occur shortly after the valuation date. Such
risk is minimised through the appointment of external property valuers., The basis of valuation of the property portfolio
is set out in detail in the accounting policies.

Operating |eases
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£ £
Future minimum lease payments recsivable under non-cancellable operating
lzases:
within one year 14,787 548 14,984 240
in mare than ane year and less than five years 37,440,943 37,715,482
in more than five years 33 488,132 320720983
85,716,623 84,771.815

Post Balance Sheet Events

On 26 July 2022, the Company completed on the sale of 9 investment properties for £57.685m. This disposal had
been recognised during the year as contracts had been exchanged on 24 June 2022, at which point the risks and
rewards of ownership had substantively passed to the purchaser.

On 1 August 2022, the Company completed the buy back of 9,228 703 ordinary shares at £2.0432 per share, The
total consideration was £18 856,086,

On 17 August 2022, the Company completed on the sale of its estate at Fareham for £4.0m.
An interim dividend of 1.625 pence per share was declared on 11 August 2022 and paid on 25 August 2022,

On 1 September 2022, the Company exchanged contacts to purchase an investment property in Aldershot for £13.6m
plus purchase costs, eguating to a net initial yield of 4.9%. The purchase completed on 8 September 2022,



CLIPSTONE INDUSTRIAL REIT PLC
CONSOLIDATED DETAILED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

RENTAL INCOME
Direct property expenses
Management fees
Performance fee

GROSS PROFIT

Gain on disposal of
investment properties

Other income

Value adjustments
Investment properties

Derivative financial instruments

Administrative expenses
Directors' remuneration
Directors' insurance
PR & Advertising

Audit fees

Tax fees

Legal fees

Valuation fees

Other professional fees
Bank charges
Impairment of goodwill
Bad debt expense
Mizcellaneous

OPERATING PROFIT

Net interest payable:
Bank loan interest payable
Bank loan issue costs
Finance lease interest
Other interest payable
Interest receivable

Profit for the period

Quarter to Quarterto Quarterto Quarter to Year to Year to
30/09/2020 31M2/2020 31/03/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2020
3,926 828 4380012 4 358 960 4 421,929 17,087,729 13,999,161

{331,707)  (202,759) (252,503) 103,910 (683,058) (1,081,991)
(7114500 (761,677) (827 ,288) (885,880) (3,186,295) (2.401,921)
2883671 3415576 3279160 3639959 13,218,376 10,505,249
(41) (2,075) 4,989,866 23933182 28,920,932 654,205
G,381 - - - G,391 -
13,885 4597 20049526 20,750,612 (1,254,7258) 53,430,910 17,857,390
16,775,518 23463027 20019647 26318416 95,576,609 29,016 844
(20,301) (22,150) (22,149) (20,000) (B4 600) (63,357)
{3,599) {5,517) (6,017) (8,014) (23,147) {17,895)
{13,125) {13,125) (13,125) (13,125) (52,500) (46,000)
(3,125) 2,625 (2,250) (2.250) (5,000) (500)
- - - - - {22,500)
(11,175) (10,950) {11,400) (9.6258) (43,150) (43,125)
(28,952) (28,319) (60,571) (28,705) (145,547) {124,899)
(716) (656) (G48) (961) (2,981) (2,666)
(21,753) 9,191 40,247 6,529 34,214 (122,618)
(719) (8,104) (267) {701) (9,881) {3,044)
{103 465) (77 ,095) (76,180) (76,852) (333,592) {445 ,604)
1,623,329 23385932 28,943 487 26,241,564 95,243,017 28,570,240
(408,418) (407 ,692) (486,861) (627,364) (1,930,335) (1,068,795)
{(114,501)  (114,500) (112,996) (73,314) (415,311) {295,583)
(29,200) (29,200) (29,200) (25,200) (116,800) (116,815)
- - - - - {1,334)
36 29 1,347 2,601 4013 1,185
(552,083}  (551,363) (527,710) (727,277) (2,458,433) i1,481,338)
1,071,246 22 834 569 28,315,757 25514 287 92 784 584 27,088 802
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